
 Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

June 13, 2023 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 



   

 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

July 11, 2023 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

  

Regular Meeting Agenda ................................................................................................................................ Page 2 

Item 7a - Agenda Summary - Approval of Meeting Minutes .......................................................................... Page 4 

Item 7a - 06.13.23 Regular Meeting Minutes ................................................................................................. Page 5 

Item 10a - Agenda Summary - Station 5 Seismic Retrofit Bid ........................................................................ Page 8 

Item 10a - GMH Builders Bid .......................................................................................................................... Page 9 

Item 10a - Public Contract Code ..................................................................................................................... Page 18 

Item 10a - Notice of Invitation to Bid ............................................................................................................. Page 20 

### 

 

 

 

 



MEETING AGENDA 
SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Tuesday, July 11, 2023 at 6:00 P.M. 

Location: Sonoma Valley Fire District Station 1 
630 2nd Street W., Sonoma, CA  95476 

 
This meeting is being conducted in person with videoconference capabilities in 

accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950, et 
seq. Agenda, Zoom link, and board packet materials are available at the following website: 

http://sonomavalleyfire.org 
 

To join by phone: 1-669-900-9128 
Meeting ID: 914 153 1767 
Meeting Passcode: 3300 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 
2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum 
 

Board of Directors: President William Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson, 
Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Mark Emery, Nick Greben, Terrence Leen. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
4. Confirmation of Agenda 
 

Opportunity for the Board to reorder agenda items. 
 
5. Comments from the Public 
 

(At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to three minutes or less.  Under State Law, matters presented 
under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time.  For items appearing on the 
agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for consideration by the 
Board of Directors.) 

 
6. Presentations 
 
 
7. Consent Calendar  
 

a) Approval of minutes from the regular meeting held on, June 13, 2023. 
Action Item 

 
8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 
  
  
 
9. Old Business 
 
 
 
 



10.   New Business 
 

a) Station 5 seismic retrofit bid acceptance. 
 
11. Other Business to Come before the Board 
 
 
12. Comments from the Floor 
 
 
13. Comments/Reports from the Board 
 
  
14.   Closed Session 
  
 
15. Adjournment 
 

This meeting will be adjourned to a regular Board meeting on August 8, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
in the Training Room of Sonoma Valley Fire District, Station 1, located at 630 2nd Street 
West, Sonoma, CA. 
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business 
referred to on the agenda are available at the following website at http://sonomavalleyfire.org. 

http://sonomavalleyfire.org/


 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Agenda Item Summary 

July 11, 2023 

 
 

 Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 
7a Maci Bettencourt, Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 
Approval of the regular meeting minutes held on June 13, 2023. 

Recommended Actions 
Approve the minutes 
 
 
Executive Summary 
The minutes have been prepared for Board review and approval. 

Alternative Actions 
Correct or amend minutes prior to approval 

Strategic Plan Alignment 
Objective 3C / 3D 

Fiscal Summary – FY 23/24 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 
Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 
 $ Use of Fund Balance $ 
 $ Contingencies $ 
  Grants $  
    
Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 
Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
Not Required 

 Attachments 
1. Minutes for June 13, 2023 regular meeting 

 



SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, June 13, 2023 

 
Meeting was held in person at Station 1, 630 2nd Street W, Sonoma, Ca.  95476 

and via video conference for general public access. 
Join by phone: 1-669-900-9128 | Meeting ID: 914 153 1767 | Meeting Passcode: 3300 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

President Norton called meeting to order at 6:01 PM 
 
2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum 
 

Board of Directors present: President William Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson, 
Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Mark Emery, Nick Greben, and Terrence Leen. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Leen and recited by all. 
 
4. Confirmation of Agenda 
 

None 
 
5. Comments from the Public 
 
 Public: Sean Lacy, Mason Lewis, Laura Bañuelos 

Virtual: David Gleba, Gary Johnson, Paul Pham. 
 No comments heard from the public. 
 
6. Presentations 
  

Paul Pham with Chavan & Associates, LLP presented the audit findings from the 2021/2022 fiscal 
year. Due to technical issues within the SVFD email system, the audit report was not received 
prior to the meeting. Chief Akre recommended the Board withhold acceptance of the audit until 
the Board has had sufficient time to review the report, asking that each director submit any 
questions they may have pertaining to the audit to him. Should there be a need to have Chavan & 
Associates answer these questions, they would be asked to attend the next scheduled meeting to 
answer any questions. If the Board has no questions, they will be asked to accept the audit report 
under old business at the next schedule meeting. 

  
7. Consent Calendar 
 

a) Board reviewed and approved the meeting minutes from the regular board meeting held on 
May 9, 2023.  M/S/P Johnson/Leen – All in Favor 

 
8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 
 
 Chief Akre gave his monthly report to the board via an oral report.  
 
9. Old Business 
  
 None 



 
 
10. New Business 
 

President Norton opened a public hearing at 6:35pm to hear public comments prior to taking action 
on items 10a, 10b, and 10c.  Hearing no public comments from the floor or via teleconference, 
President Norton closed the hearing at 6:36pm 

  
a) Director Leen motioned to approve Resolution 2022/2023-05, adopting the SVFD’s 

preliminary budgets.  M/S/P Leen/Johnson – All in Favor 
 

b) Director Leen motioned to adopt Resolution 2022/2023-06, setting the District’s Proposition 4 
Limit for fiscal year 2023/2024.  M/S/P Leen/Emery – All in Favor 
 

c) Director Leen motioned to approve Resolution 2022/2023-07, adopting the District’s fiscal 
year 2023/2024 special tax be set at 100% +inflation for each parcel of real property in the 
District.  M/S/P Leen/Johnson – All in Favor 

 
d) Director Johnson motioned to accept the Station 4 lease amendment between the Diamond A 

Recreation Association and the Sonoma Valley Fire District, extending the lease until June 
20, 2053. M/S/P Johnson/Leen – All in Favor 

 
e) Director Emery motioned to approve a 60 day contract extension between the Kenwood Fire 

Protection District and the Sonoma Valley Fire District for shared staffing services, with the 
stipulation that there be progress to a long-term agreement in place. M/S/P Emery/Johnson 
– All in Favor 

 
11. Other Business to come before the Board 
  

a) Chief Akre invited the Board to attend a recognition ceremony honoring safety member and 
community members at Friedman’s Home Improvement on Thursday at 9:30am 

 
b) Chief Akre informed the Board Sonoma Valley Hospital has contracted with a new 

Emergency Room Doctors Group.  It is the same group that oversees Queen of the Valley. 
 
c) Chief Akre asked the Board if they would consider hosting the Fire District Association 

monthly dinner on, July 27th.  The Board agreed with a location to be determined soon. 
 

12. Comments from the Floor 
 

None 
 
13. Comments/Reports from the Board 
 

Director Leen shared his and several community thank yous from attendees of the Memorial Day 
event at the Sonoma Veterans Memorial Park.  Having the truck, flag, and crew present is always 
appreciated. 
 

14. Closed Session 
  

None 
 
 
 
 

  



15. Adjournment 
 

M/S Greben/Leen – All in Favor 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:23 pm to a regular Board meeting on July 11, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. This 
meeting will be conducted in person with videoconference capabilities available to the public. 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business 
referred to on the agenda are available at the following website: http://sonomavalleyfire.org under 
the Governance tab. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

  
Maci Bettencourt 

http://sonomavalleyfire.org/


 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Agenda Item Summary 

July 11, 2023 

 
 

 Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 
10a Battalion Chief Bob Norrbom 

Agenda Item Title 
Station 5 Seismic Retrofit Bid 
 

 Recommended Actions 
Accept bid for the Station 5 Seismic Retrofit. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
The Station 5 Seismic Retrofit was put out to bid last month.  A detailed Scope of Work, Approved Plans and 
Engineering Calculations were made available for the proposed bidders.  As pursuant to Public Contract Code 
20810-20813, public notice was provided, as outlined.  There were 2 bids received before the deadline at 5pm 
on June 30th.  The lowest bid was from GMH Builders Incorporated for $746,935.00.  We are requesting the 
board approve entering into a contract with GMH Builders Incorporated, located at 19150 Sonoma Hwy, for 
$746,935.00 to complete the Station 5 Seismic Retrofit Project. 

Alternative Actions 
Do not approve the Station 5 Seismic Retrofit Bid 

Strategic Plan Alignment 
Goal 1; Objective 1A: Identify and implement critical facility improvements for current and 
future needs 

Fiscal Summary – FY 23/24 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $746,935 District General Fund $ 
Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 
 $ Use of Fund Balance $746,935 
 $ Contingencies $ 
  Grants $  
    
Total Expenditure $746,935 Total Sources $746,935 
Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
 

 Attachments 
1. GMH Bid Proposal 
2. Public Contract Code 
3. Notice of invitation to bid 

 





















PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE - PCC 
DIVISION 2. GENERAL PROVISIONS [1100 - 22355] 
  ( Division 2 enacted by Stats. 1981, Ch. 306. ) 

PART 3. CONTRACTING BY LOCAL AGENCIES [20100 - 22178] 
  ( Part 3 added by Stats. 1982, Ch. 465, Sec. 11. ) 

CHAPTER 1. Local Agency Public Construction Act [20100 - 20929] 
  ( Chapter 1 added by Stats. 1982, Ch. 465, Sec. 11. ) 

 
ARTICLE 53. Fire Protection Districts [20810 - 20813] 
  ( Heading of Article 53 amended by Stats. 1984, Ch. 1128, Sec. 61. ) 
 
20810. 
   
The provisions of this article shall apply to contracts by fire protection districts as 
provided for in the Fire Protection District Law pursuant to Division 12 (commencing 
with Section 13000) of the Health and Safety Code. 
(Added by Stats. 1983, Ch. 256, Sec. 96.) 

20811. 
   
When a district board determines that it is in the public interest, a district may 
contract with any other public agency for fire protection services, rescue services, 
emergency medical services, hazardous material emergency response services, 
ambulance services, and any other emergency services for the protection of lives 
and property. 
(Added by Stats. 1987, Ch. 1013, Sec. 12.) 

20812. 
   
(a) A district board may contract for special services. These contracts shall be with 
persons specially trained, experienced, expert, and competent to perform the 
special services. The special services shall be limited to the fields of accounting, 
administration, ambulance, architecture, custodial, economics, engineering, 
finance, insurance, labor relations, law, maintenance, mechanics, medicine, 
planning, science, technology, and other services which are incidental to the 
operation of the district. 
(b) In the case of a district which has a final budget in excess of one million dollars 
($1,000,000), the district shall follow the contracting and purchasing procedures 
which apply to the county government of its principal county or the procedures in 
subdivision (c). 
(c) In the case of a district which has a final budget less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000), the district shall follow the procedures of this subdivision. 

(1) When the expenditure required for the service contract exceeds twenty-five 
thousand dollars ($25,000), it shall be contracted for and let to the lowest 
responsible bidder. If two or more bids are the same and the lowest, the district 
board may accept the one it chooses. 

javascript:submitCodesValues('20810.','3.4.1.69','1983','256','96',%20'id_5b10a50c-2920-11d9-b2c2-928613645e27')
javascript:submitCodesValues('20811.','3.4.1.69','1987','1013','12',%20'id_5b10a50e-2920-11d9-b2c2-928613645e27')
javascript:submitCodesValues('20812.','3.4.1.69','2006','261','1',%20'id_ed45173a-817b-11db-9cbc-8a58caaa0d9a')


(2) The notice inviting bids shall set a date for the opening of bids. The first 
publication or posting of the notice shall be at least 10 days before the date of 
opening the bids. Notice shall be published at least twice, at least five days apart, 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the district, or if there is none, it shall be 
posted in at least three public places in the district. The notice shall distinctly 
state the service to be performed. 

(3) The district board may reject any bids. If the district board rejects all bids, it 
may either readvertise or adopt a resolution, by two-thirds vote, declaring that 
the service can be performed more economically by the district’s employees or 
obtained at a lower price in the open market. Upon adoption of the resolution, the 
district board may undertake the service contract without further complying with 
this section. 

(4) If no bids are received, the district board may undertake the service contract 
without further complying with this section. 

(5) In the case of an emergency, the district board shall respond to the 
emergency pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 22050) if notice 
for bids to let contracts will not be given. 

(Amended by Stats. 2006, Ch. 261, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 2007.) 

20813. 
   
(a) All contracts for the construction or completion of any building, structure, or 
improvement, when the expenditure required for the work exceeds ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000), shall be contracted for and let to the lowest responsible bidder 
after notice. If two or more bids are the same and the lowest, the district board 
may accept the one it chooses. 
(b) The notice inviting bids shall set a date for the opening of bids. The first 
publication or posting of the notice shall be at least 10 days before the date of 
opening the bids. Notice shall be published at least twice, not less than five days 
apart, in a newspaper of general circulation in the district, or if there is none, it 
shall be posted in at least three public places in the district. The notice shall 
distinctly state the work to be done. 
(c) In its discretion, the district board may reject any bids presented and 
readvertise. 
(d) In the case of an emergency, the district board may act pursuant to Chapter 2.5 
(commencing with Section 22050). 
(e) The district board may, subject to the provisions of Chapter 5 (commencing 
with Section 9550) of Title 3 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, require the 
posting of those bonds it deems desirable as a condition to the filing of a bid or the 
letting of a contract. 
(f) Cost records of the work shall be kept in the manner provided in Chapter 1 
(commencing with Section 4000) of Division 5 of Title 1 of the Government Code. 
(Amended by Stats. 2010, Ch. 697, Sec. 53. (SB 189) Effective January 1, 2011. Operative July 1, 2012, by Sec. 105 
of Ch. 697.) 

javascript:submitCodesValues('20813.','3.4.1.69','2010','697','53',%20'id_c0412897-14b0-11e0-85fe-826b00c4d02a')



	Cover_07.11.23
	Agenda_07.11.23
	MEETING AGENDA
	Location: Sonoma Valley Fire District Station 1
	630 2nd Street W., Sonoma, CA  95476
	To join by phone: 1-669-900-9128
	Meeting ID: 914 153 1767
	Meeting Passcode: 3300

	7a _Agenda_Item_Minutes
	7a_Minutes_06.13.23
	10a_Agenda_Item_Station 5 Seismic Retrofit
	10a_GMH Bid
	10a_Public Contract Code section 20810-20813; Fire Protection District contracts
	PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE - PCC
	DIVISION 2. GENERAL PROVISIONS [1100 - 22355]
	PART 3. CONTRACTING BY LOCAL AGENCIES [20100 - 22178]
	CHAPTER 1. Local Agency Public Construction Act [20100 - 20929]
	ARTICLE 53. Fire Protection Districts [20810 - 20813]
	20810.
	20811.
	20812.
	20813.




	10a_Notice Inviting Bids

